
DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

CITY COUNCIL 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor 

Princess Washington, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jenalee Dawson 

Michael J. Hudson 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 

A G E N D A 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

AND 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023 

5:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
The following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting may include teleconference participation by: 

Council/Board Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, and Mayor Alma 

Hernandez, in accordance with subdivisions (b), (e), or (f) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as applicable. 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:   891 0197 6296 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4:00 p.m.) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR ZOOM CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

ROLL CALL 

Council/Board Members 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION 
(Any items on this agenda that might require recusal by a Councilmember based on a conflict of interest should be 

identified at this time.) 

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


January 17, 2023 City Council / Successor Agency  Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council and Suisun City 

Council Acting as Successor Agency will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of: 

City Council 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency negotiator:  City Manager  

Employee organization: SCMPEA (Suisun City Management and Professional 

Employees’ Association); 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Discussion of potential significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section

54956.9(d)(2) (1 potential case).

Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

3. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.8., the Suisun City Council Acting as

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of Suisun City will hold a Closed Session for

the purpose of Conference with Real Property Negotiator.

Property Under Negotiation: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers:  APN: 0032-141-130, 

located at 718 Main Street. 

Negotiating Party: City Manager 

Parties Negotiating: To Be Determined 
Under Negotiations: Terms and payment 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 



January 17, 2023 City Council / Successor Agency  Page 3 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open 

session of this meeting, and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours 

prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. 

Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less 

than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the open session 

of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda 

packet is also located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review. The 

city may charge photocopying charges for requested copies of such documents. To the extent feasible, 

the agenda packet is available for online public viewing on the City’s website: 

www.suisun.com/government/city-council/city-council 

The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 p.m. No new items 

will be taken up after 10:00 p.m., unless so moved by a majority of the City Council,  and any items 

remaining will be agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that 

all items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

ACCOMMODATIONS  
If you require an accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (707) 

421-7302 or clerk@suisun.com. The City’s reasonable accommodation policy is available for review on

the City’s website at www.suisun.com/government/city-council/, you may request an electronic copy or

have a copy mailed to you. Please note that for accommodations that are not readily available, you must

make your request as soon as you can prior to the time of the meeting.

DECORUM 

All participants are expected to conduct themselves with mutual respect. Conduct that disrupts meetings 

will be addressed in accordance with Section 54957.95 of the Government Code. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinances are city laws contained in the Suisun City Municipal Code. Enacting a new city law or 

changing an existing one is a two-step process.  Government Code 36934 provides, except when, after 

reading the title, further reading is waived by regular motion adopted by majority vote all ordinances shall 

be read in full either at the time of introduction or passage; provided, however, that a reading of the title or 

ordinance shall not be required if the title is included on the published agenda and a copy of the full ordinance 

is made available to the public online and in print at the meeting prior to the introduction or passage. 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center 

Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including: 

• Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA; 
• Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA; 
• Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA; 
• Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA.

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the 

above agenda was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 

http://www.suisun.com/government/city-council/city-council
mailto:clerk@suisun.com
http://www.suisun.com/government/city-council/


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



CITY COUNCIL 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor 

Princess Washington, Mayor Pro Tem 

Jenalee Dawson, Member 

Michael J Hudson, Member 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

A G E N D A 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL, 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023 

6:30 PM 

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California 

NOTICE 
The following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting may include teleconference participation by: 

Council/Board Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, and Mayor Alma 

Hernandez, in accordance with subdivisions (b), (e), or (f) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as applicable. 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLICWHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU. 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER OF 

SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com OR 707 

421-7302.

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:  893 7780 7186 

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING BY EMAILING 

CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM), VIA WEBSITE, OR ZOOM CALL IN PHONE NUMBER (707) 438-1720 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

(Next Ord. No. – 799) 

(Next City Council Res. No. 2023 – 07) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2023 - 01) 

(Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2023 – 01) 

ROLL CALL 

Council /Board Members 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Invocation 

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

REPORTS (Informational items only.) 

1 City Manager Update - (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com). 

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

2 Mayoral Appointments - (Heranandez: ahernandez@suisun.com). 

a. Appointment of Solano Transportation Authority Board Alternate.

b. Appointment of Solano County Water Agency Board Alternate.

c. Appointment of Suisun Solano Water Authority Executive Committee Board

Alternate.

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per California 

Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the Mayor/Chair. Speaker 

cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the City Clerk. By law, no 

prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period, although informational 

answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a future agenda.) 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

3 Council/Board Members Updates 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

4 Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2023- : A Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and 

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through February 15, 2023 

- (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

5 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023- : Authorizing the Purchase of mobile and portable 

radios from Motorola Solution for the new Type 5 Wildland Apparatus - (Lopez: 

blopez@suisun.com). 

6 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023- : Approving Application for Specified Grant 

Funds From the Budget Act of 2022, Item 3790-101-001 As Amended By AB 179, Section 

19.56 Item #:(9)(B)(1)(G) $2,500,000 to the City of Suisun City for Park Upgrades: 

Prosperity Garden Park and Montebello Vista Park - (Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com). 



7 Council Adoption of Ordinance No. 797: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of Suisun City Communities Facilities District 

No. 2 (Municipal Services), Including Certain Annexation Territory (Introduced on January 3, 

2023) - (Vue: nvue@suisun.com). 

8 Council Adoption of Ordinance No. 798: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of Suisun City Communities Facilities District 

No. 2 (Municipal Services, Including Certain Annexation Territory (Introduced on January 3, 

2023) - (Vue: nvue@suisun.com). 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

9 Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of 

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing 

Authority held on December 20, 2022 – (Skinner: askinner@suisun.com). 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

10 Council/Agency Approval  of  December  2022  Payroll  Warrants  in  the Amount  of 

$926,076.89 and Council/Agency Approval of the December 2022 Accounts Payable 

Warrants in the Amount of $2,080,613.32 – (Finance). 

PUBLIC HEARING   NONE 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

City Council 

11 Interview of City Council Applicants - (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com). .

REPORTS: (Informational items only) 

12 Non-Discussion Items. 

ADJOURNMENT 

mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com


Public Access To Agenda Documents 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this 

meeting, and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council 

/Agency/Authority Meeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. Agenda related writings or 

documents provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a 

Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting will be made available 

for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda packet is also located at the entrance to the Council 

Chambers during the meeting for public review. The city may charge photocopying charges for requested copies of 

such documents. To the extent feasible, the agenda packet is available for online public viewing on the City’s 

website: www.suisun.com/government/city-council/city-council 

The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 p.m. No new items will be 

taken up after 10:00 p.m., unless so moved by a majority of the City Council, and any items remaining will be agendized 

for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all items scheduled will be discussed within 

the time allowed. 

Accommodations 

If you require an accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (707) 421-7302 or 

clerk@suisun.com. The City’s reasonable accommodation policy is available for review on the City’s website at 

www.suisun.com/government/city-council/, you may request an electronic copy or have a copy mailed to you. Please 

note that for accommodations that are not readily available, you must make your request as soon as you can prior to 

the time of the meeting. 

Decorum 

All participants are expected to conduct themselves with mutual respect. Conduct that disrupts meetings will be 

addressed in accordance with Section 54957.95 of the Government Code. 

Ordinances 

Ordinances are city laws contained in the Suisun City Municipal Code. Enacting a new city law or changing an existing 

one is a two-step process. Government Code 36934 provides, except when, after reading the title, further reading is 

waived by regular motion adopted by majority vote all ordinances shall be read in full either at the time of 

introduction or passage; provided, however, that a reading of the title or ordinance shall not be required if the title 

is included on the published agenda and a copy of the full ordinance is made available to the public online and in 

print at the meeting prior to the introduction or passage. 

Certification Of Posting 

Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center 

Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including: 

Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA. 

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above 

agenda was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 

http://www.suisun.com/government/city-council/city-council
mailto:clerk@suisun.com
http://www.suisun.com/government/city-council/


AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

MEETING DATE: January 17, 2023

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2023-__:
A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and
authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative bodies, as
authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through February 15, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance.

BACKGROUND: A number of laws have changed since the beginning of the COVID pandemic
related to the Brown Act as it relates to teleconferenced public meetings, both from Governor
Newsom’s Executive Orders and recently from the enactment of Assembly Bill 361, which took effect
October 1, 2021, allowing continued remote teleconference meetings without traditional Brown Act
compliance, provided certain findings can be made related to the ongoing state of emergency and
subject to adherence to certain new noticing and public participation requirements. 

The City, as all public agencies in California, must invoke and adhere to AB 361 and its modifications
on certain elements of remote public meetings, or else revert to traditional Brown Act compliance. The
major change associated with continuing remote meetings under AB 361 is that the public must now be
allowed to make comments in real-time during the public comment period, either telephonically or
electronically (such as by Zoom). No physical location for public comment need be provided. 

Assembly Bill 361, which took effect October 1, 2021, allowing continued remote teleconference
meetings without traditional Brown Act compliance, provided certain findings can be made related to
the ongoing state of emergency and subject to adherence to certain new noticing and public
participation requirements,

On October 19, 2021 the City of Suisun City passed a resolution proclaiming that a local emergency
persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by City’s the
legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., for the initial period of
October 19, 2021 through November 18, 2021.

STAFF REPORT: This is a recurring resolution, after 30 days following the initial invocation of AB
361, continued reliance on AB 361 for subsequent meetings requires the following:

1. Either the “state of emergency” must remain active, or state or local officials have imposed or
recommended measures to promote social distancing; and

2. No later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time under AB 361 rules, and every 30
days thereafter, the legislative body, by majority vote, finds that it has reconsidered the
circumstances of the state of emergency and at least one of the following circumstances exist:

The state of emergency continues to impact the ability of the members to meet safely in
person; or
State or local officials continue to impose recommended measures to promote social
distancing.

Item 4

1



 
Continued reliance on AB 361 will require adoption of a new resolution making the required findings
every 30 days.
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2023-
____: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency
persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by City’s the
legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through February 15,
2023.
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1.  Resolution 2023-___ A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a
local emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting
procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et
seq., through February 15, 2023.

 

PREPARED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
REVIEWED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meeting Procedures.pdf

Item 4

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1741232/1.__Resolution_Authorizing_Remote_Teleconference_Meeting_Procedures.pdf


 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS AND 

AUTHORIZING THE TRANSITION TO USE OF REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETING PROCEDURES BY CITY’S THE 

LEGISLATIVE BODIES, AS AUTHORIZED BY GOVERNMENT 

CODE SECTION 54953(E) ET SEQ., THROUGH FEBRUARY 15, 2023. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Suisun City is committed to preserving 

and nurturing public access, transparency, observation and participation in its meetings and 

the meetings of each of its legislative bodies; and  

 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the City’s legislative bodies are open and public, as 

required by the Ralph M. Brown Act, codified as Government Code sections 54950 et seq., so 

that any member of the public may attend, participate, and observe the City’s legislative 

bodies conduct their business; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, as amended by Assembly Bill 361 (2021), amending 

Government Code section 54953(e) et seq., allows for remote teleconferencing observation 

and participation in meetings by members of a legislative body and members of the public, 

without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject 

to the existence of certain conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the initial required condition is a declaration of a state of emergency by 

the Governor pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act, Government Code section 

8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of 

persons and property within the state and within the boundaries of the City, as provided in 

Government Code section 8558; and  

 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, pursuant to Government Code Section 8625, 

Governor Newsom declared the existence of a state of emergency for the State of California, 

in response to the outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (a disease now 

known as COVID-19); and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the City’s Director of Emergency Services declared 

a local emergency for the City pursuant to Chapter 2.32 of the Suisun City Municipal Code, 

finding that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen 

within the City as a result of the COVID-19 virus and that these conditions are or are likely to 

be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-40, 

ratifying the Director of Emergency Services’ declaration of local emergency; and 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953(e) further requires that state or local 

officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; or, the 

legislative body of the City finds that meeting in person would present imminent risk to the 

health and safety of attendees; and  

Item 4 
Attachment 1

3



 

Resolution No. 2023- 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that such emergency conditions now exist in 

the City, such that meeting in person for the meetings of the legislative bodies of the City 

would present imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees as a result of the increased 

risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus among those in attendance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that the state of emergency due to the COVID-

19 virus and the conditions related thereto has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions 

of extreme peril to the safety of persons within the City that are likely to be beyond the 

control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City, and thereby affirms, 

authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency persists throughout the City, 

and ratifies the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that, as a consequence of the existing local 

emergency, the legislative bodies of the City shall conduct their meetings without compliance 

with Government Code section 54953(b)(3), and shall instead comply with the remote 

teleconference meeting requirements as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e) et 

seq.; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Council affirms that it will allow for observation and participation by 

Councilmembers and the public by allowing limited in-person attendance, as well as allowing 

public participation and comment in real time via Zoom or by telephone, in an effort to 

protect the constitutional and statutory rights of all attendees.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

FINDS, RESOLVES, AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein 

Resolution by reference. 

 

Section 2. The Council hereby recognizes and affirms the existence and conditions of 

a state of emergency as proclaimed by the Governor, the existence of emergency conditions in 

the City, and affirms, authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency 

persists throughout the City. 

 

Section 3. The Council hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s 

Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

 

Section 4. Further, the Council finds that holding the meetings of the City’s legislative 

bodies in person with no limitations to attendance would present imminent risk to the health 

and safety of attendees as a result of the increased risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus 

among those in attendance, as required by Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. 

 

Section 5. The City Manager and legislative bodies of the City are hereby authorized 

and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution 

Item 4 
Attachment 1

4



 

Resolution No. 2023- 

Adopted  

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

including, conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 

54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

 

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be 

effective until the earlier of (i) February 15, 2023, or (ii) such time the Council adopts a 

subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the 

time during which the legislative bodies of the City may continue to teleconference without 

compliance with Government Code section 54953(b)(3). 

  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on January 17, 2023, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Council Members: 

NOES:  Council Members: 

ABSENT:  Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 17th day of January 2023.  

 

 

_________________________________  

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

 

 

  

Item 4 
Attachment 1

5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

6



 
AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: January 17, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___:  Authorizing the Purchase of
mobile and portable radios from Motorola Solution for the new Type 5 Wildland Apparatus.
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The funds for this purchase were already approved and budgeted by Resolution
No. 2022-18. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 3. Ensure Public Safety.
 
BACKGROUND: In February 2022 the Fire Department sought approval from the City Council to
purchase a Golden State Type 5 wildland engine.  The purchase of the apparatus ($356,308.56) and the
budget for additional equipment ($120,000.00) was approved by Resolution No. 2022-18.
 
STAFF REPORT: The fire department is seeking approval to purchase mobile and portable radios to
be utilized in the new Type 5 Wildland Unit currently in production. The purchase and installation of
these radios will ensure continuity of communications between the crews and allow the unit to be
placed into service immediately after arrival. The total cost for the purchase is not to exceed $43,000. 
There is no additional cost for installation. Motorola is a pre-authorized sole source provider listed on
the Houston-Galveston Area Council Cooperative Purchasing Program (HGACBuy). Suisun City is a
member of HGACBuy.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Council Adopt Resolution No. 2023-___:
Authorizing the Purchase of mobile and portable radios from Motorola Solution for the new Type 5
Wildland Apparatus
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Resolution No. 2023-___ Authorizing the Purchase of mobile and portable radios from Motorola
Solution for the new Type 5 Wildland Apparatus

2. Quote for Motorola Radios
 

PREPARED BY: Michelle Zunino, Administrative Assistant
REVIEWED BY: Brad Lopez, Fire Chief 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of mobile and portable radios from Motorola Solution for the new
Type 5 Wildland apparatus.pdf
2. Quote - Motorola Solutions.pdf

Item 5

7

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1740966/1.__Resolution_Authorizing_the_Purchase_of_mobile_and_portable_radios_from_Motorola_Solution_for_the_new_Type_5_Wildland_apparatus.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1740967/2.__Quote_-_Motorola_Solutions.pdf


 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF MOBILE AND PORTABLE RADIOS FROM 

MOTOROLA SOLUTION FOR THE NEW TYPE 5 WILDLAND APPARATUS 

 

WHEREAS, on February 15th the City Council approved the purchase of a Type 5 

Wildland apparatus and the equipment necessary to upfit the unit; and 

WHEREAS, a set of Motorola portable and mobile radios are listed on the Houston-

Galveston Area Council Cooperative Purchasing Program (HGACBuy); and 

WHEREAS, Suisun City is a member of (HGACBuy); and 

WHEREAS, staff has evaluated the needs of the apparatus and recommends the 

purchase of Motorola portable and mobile radios for a cost not to exceed $43,000.00. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

FINDS, RESOLVES, AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: the Purchase of mobile and portable 

radios from Motorola Solution for the new Type 5 Wildland Apparatus in an amount not to 

exceed $45,000. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on January 17, 2023, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Council Members: 

NOES:  Council Members: 

ABSENT:  Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 17th day of January 2023.  

 

 

_________________________________  

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

 

 

  

Item 5 
Attachment 1

8



Item 5 
Attachment 2

9



Item 5 
Attachment 2

10



 
AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: January 17, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___: Approving Application for
Specified Grant Funds From the Budget Act of 2022, Item 3790-101-001 As Amended By AB 179,
Section 19.56 Item #:(9)(B)(1)(G) $2,500,000 to the City of Suisun City for Park Upgrades: Prosperity
Garden Park and Montebello Vista Park
 
FISCAL IMPACT: State Funding of $2.5 million with no local match.
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Ensure Fiscal Solvency.
 
BACKGROUND: The Montebello Vista Lighting and Landscape Maintenance Assessment District
does not generate sufficient revenue to cover expenses related to the maintenance of Montebello Vista
Park, streetlight electricity/maintenance, and Walters Road entrance and median maintenance.
Currently, the Assessment District Fund is in the negative by more than $50,000.    The Recreation,
Parks, and Marina (RPM) Department submitted applications for the Statewide Development
Community Revitalization Program Round 4 in 2021 and the Rural Recreation and Tourism Program in
2022 for improvements to Montebello Vista Park, but was not awarded for either.

In September 2021, Suisun City Council dedicated $375,000 of American Rescue Plan Act Funds to
fund a community garden.  In October 2021, Suisun City Council approved the implementation of the
Prosperity Garden Park on a 1.73 acre City owned lot located on Blossom Ave, adjacent to the McCoy
Creek Bike Trail Phase 3.  Finally in March 2022, Suisun City Council approved a contract with Melton
Design Group for the design plan and project coordination of the Prosperity Garden Park.
 
STAFF REPORT: In June 2022, the RPM Department was notified that funding for Prosperity Garden
Park and Montebello Vista Park was included in 2022-2023 California State Budget.  

Funding towards Prosperity Garden Park and Montebello Vista Park is part of the State of California
Department of Parks and Recreation’s “Local Assistance Specified Grants’ program.  Because funding
is in the form of a grant, the City of Suisun City must pass an authorizing resolution and enter into
contract with the California Office of Grants and Local Services (OGALS) in order to utilize funds and
complete both parks projects.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 2023-
___: Approving Application for Specified Grant Funds From the Budget Act of 2022, Item 3790-101-
001 As Amended By AB 179, Section 19.56 Item #:(9)(B)(1)(G) $2,500,000 to the City of Suisun City
for Park Upgrades: Prosperity Garden Park and Montebello Vista Park.
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 6

11



 
 
 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Resolution No. 2023-___:  Approving Application for Specified Grant Funds From the Budget
Act of 2022, Item 3790-101-001 As Amended By AB 179, Section 19.56 Item #:(9)(B)(1)(G)
$2,500,000 to the City of Suisun City for Park Upgrades: Prosperity Garden Park and Montebello
Vista Park.

 

PREPARED BY: Marvin Mora, Recreation Supervisor
REVIEWED BY: Kris Lofthus, Deputy City Manager
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution Approving Application for Specified Grant Funds From Budget Act of 2022.pdf

Item 6

12

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1741340/1.__Resolution_Approving_Application_for_Specified_Grant_Funds_From_Budget_Act_of_2022.pdf


1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

CALIFORNIA, APPROVING APPLICATION(S) FOR SPECIFIED GRANT 

FUNDS FROM THE BUDGET ACT OF 2022, ITEM 3790-101-0001 AS 

AMENDED BY AB 179, SECTION 19.56 ITEM #:(9)(B)(1)(G) $2,500,000 TO 

THE CITY OF SUISUN FOR PARK UPGRADES: PROSPERITY GARDEN 

PARK AND MONTEBELLO VISTA PARK. 

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the 

responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of a grant to 

the City of Suisun City, setting up necessary procedures governing application(s); and 

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 

Recreation require the applicant’s Governing Body to certify by resolution the approval of 

project application(s) before submission of said applications to the State; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant will enter into a contract with the State of California to 

complete project(s); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City Council hereby: 

1. Approves the filing of project application(s) for specified grant project(s); and

2. Certifies that said applicant has or will have available, prior to commencement of

project work utilizing specified grant funds, sufficient funds, including those provided

by this grant, to complete the project; and

3. Certifies that the applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General

Provisions contained in the contract shown in this Procedural Guide; and

4. Delegates the authority to the City Manager, or designee to conduct all negotiations,

sign and submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements,

amendments, and payment requests, which may be necessary for the completion of the

project scope(s); and

5. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on January 17, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 

NOES: Council Members: 

ABSENT: Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 17th day of January 2023. 

_________________________________ 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 6 
Attachment 1

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

14



 
AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: January 17, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Ordinance No. 797:  An Ordinance of the City Council
of the City of Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of Suisun City Communities Facilities
District No. 2 (Municipal Services), Including Certain Annexation Territory.
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There would be an impact to the General Fund from this item.  Once annexed into
CFD#2, Caterpillar Clubhouse will begin to contribute funds towards Safety Services such as police and
fire. The annexation of the Caterpillar Clubhouse into Community Facilities District No. 2 meets the
fiscal criteria as established by Resolution No. 2005-69 Cost Recovery Policy for New Development,
dated October 4, 2005. Community Facilities District #2 is intended to offset Municipal Service costs,
including administrative costs, thereby reducing the negative fiscal impact of new development on the
City’s General Fund.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance and Ensure Public Safety.
 
BACKGROUND: As part of the Caterpillar Clubhouse conditions of approval, the developer is
required to mitigate the impact on City Services due to the new development.  In accordance with the
development conditions imposed on development project, the landowner is annexing to Community
Facility District No. 2 to offset municipal service costs for police, fire, paramedics. 
 
As the first step in the annexation process, the Resolution of Intention was brought before Council and
approved at the November 1, 2022, Council Meeting.  
 
The second step in the legislative process for annexation of the Caterpillar Clubhouse into Community
Facility District No. 2 included conducting the Public Hearing and the waiving the first reading of the
Ordinance at the January 3, 2023, Council Meeting
 
STAFF REPORT: The final step in the legislative process for the annexation of Caterpillar Clubhouse
involves the item coming back to Council as a Consent item to complete the adoption of the associated
Ordinance. This is the step before you tonight
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Ordinance No.797:
 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of
Suisun City Communities Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services), Including Certain Annexation
Territory.
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Ordinance No. 797:  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Suisun City Levying Special
Tax Within City of Suisun City Communities Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services),
Including Certain Annexation Territory.

 

Item 7

15



PREPARED BY: Amanda Dum, Management Analyst II

REVIEWED BY: Nouae Vue, Director Public Works
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance 797 Caterpillar Annexation #13 CFD# 2.pdf

Item 7

16

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1741440/1.__Ordinance_797_Caterpillar_Annexation__13_CFD__2.pdf


1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

ORDINANCE NO. 797 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SUISUN CITY LEVYING SPECIAL TAX WITHIN CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 (MUNICIPAL 

SERVICES), INCLUDING CERTAIN ANNEXATION TERRITORY 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

Community Facilities District No. 2 

(Municipal Services) 

Annexation No. 13 (Caterpillar Clubhouse) 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City (the “City”) has conducted proceedings pursuant 

to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act, Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, 

commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government Code (the “Act”) to establish 

“City of Suisun City Community Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services)” (the “CFD”) 

for the purpose of financing certain municipal services (the “Services) as provided in the Act; 

and 

WHEREAS, the rate and method of apportionment of special tax for the CFD (the 

“Original Rate and Method”) is set forth in Exhibit A to City Council Resolution 2005-89, 

which was adopted on November 15, 2005 (the “Resolution of Formation”); and  

WHEREAS, the City has conducted proceedings to annex territory into the CFD and, 

in connection therewith, approved supplements to the Original Rate and Method (as 

supplemented, the “Rate and Method”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY as follows: 

SECTION ONE: By the passage of this Ordinance, pursuant to the Act, the Council 

hereby authorizes and levies the Special Tax within the CFD, including all territory annexed 

into the CFD prior to the date hereof, at the rate and in accordance with method set forth in the 

Rate and Method, which rate and method are by this reference incorporated herein. The Special 

Tax has previously been levied in the original territory of the CFD beginning in fiscal year 

2006-07 pursuant to Ordinance No. 684, passed and adopted by the City Council on December 

6, 2005, and the Special Tax is hereby levied commencing in fiscal year 2022-23 in the territory 

annexed to the CFD subsequent to formation of the CFD, and in each fiscal year thereafter to 

pay for the Services for the CFD and all costs of administering the CFD. 

Item 7 
Attachment 1

17



 

Ordinance No. __ 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

The City Council hereby ratifies the levy of special taxes within the CFD pursuant to the Act, 

at the rate and in accordance with the Rate and Method, in fiscal years 2006-07 through 2022-

23. 

SECTION TWO: The City Manager or designee, or an employee or consultant of the 

City, is hereby authorized and directed each fiscal year to determine the specific Special Tax to 

be levied for the next ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within the CFD, 

including all territory annexed to the CFD prior to the date hereof, in the manner and as provided 

in the Rate and Method. 

SECTION THREE: Exemptions from the levy of the Special Tax shall be as provided 

in the Resolution of Formation, the Rate and Method and the applicable provisions of the Act. 

In no event shall the Special Tax be levied on any parcel within the CFD in excess of the 

maximum Special Tax specified in the Rate and Method. 

SECTION FOUR: All of the collections of the Special Tax shall be used as provided 

in the Act and in the Resolution of Formation, including, but not limited to, the payment of 

costs of the Services, the payment of the costs of the City in administering the CFD, and the 

costs of collecting and administering the Special Tax. 

SECTION FIVE: The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary 

ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and be subject to the same 

penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as provided for ad valorem 

taxes; provided, however, that the Council may provide for other appropriate methods of 

collection by resolution(s) of the Council. The City Manager of the City (or the City Manager’s 

designee) is hereby authorized and directed to provide all necessary information to the 

auditor/tax collector of the County of Solano in order to effect proper billing and collection of 

the Special Tax, so that the Special Tax shall be included on the secured property tax roll of the 

County of Solano for fiscal year 2022-23 and for each fiscal year thereafter, as set forth above, 

until no longer required to pay for the Services or until otherwise terminated by the City. 

SECTION SIX: If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid, 

or if the Special Tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within the CFD, including 

all territory annexed to the CFD prior to the date hereof, by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

the balance of this Ordinance and the application of the Special Tax to the remaining parcels 

within the CFD, including all territory annexed to the CFD prior to the date hereof, shall not be 

affected. 

SECTION SEVEN: The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause 

the same to be published immediately after its passage at least once in a newspaper of general 

circulation circulated in the City. 

SECTION EIGHT: This Council affirms the provisions of Ordinance No. 684 except 

to the extent any terms of such Ordinance are inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in which case the terms of this Ordinance shall govern.  

Item 7 
Attachment 1

18



 

Ordinance No. __ 

Adopted  

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

SECTION NINE: This Ordinance shall become effective (30) days following its 

passage and adoption and shall be published once within fifteen (15) days upon passage and 

adoption in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano. 

  INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun City 

held on January 3, 2023, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 3rd day of January 2023. 

  

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 
 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of  

Suisun City held on January 17, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 

ATTEST: 

 

             

Mayor      Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

 

Item 7 
Attachment 1

19



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

20



 
AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: January 17, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Ordinance No. 798:  An Ordinance of the City Council
of the City of Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of Suisun City Communities Facilities
District No. 2 (Municipal Services, Including Certain Annexation Territory (Introduced on January 3,
2023).
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There would be an impact to the General Fund from this item.  Once annexed into
CFD#2, Zip Thru Car Wash will begin to contribute funds towards Safety Services such as police and
fire. The annexation of the Zip Thru Car Wash into Community Facilities District No. 2 meets the fiscal
criteria as established by Resolution No. 2005-69 Cost Recovery Policy for New Development, dated
October 4, 2005. Community Facilities District #2 is intended to offset Municipal Service costs,
including administrative costs, thereby reducing the negative fiscal impact of new development on the
City’s General Fund.
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance and Ensure Public Safety.
 
BACKGROUND: As part of the Zip Thru Car Wash conditions of approval, the developer is required
to mitigate the impact on City Services due to the new development.  In accordance with the
development conditions imposed on development project, the landowner is annexing to Community
Facility District No. 2 to offset municipal service costs for police, fire, paramedics. 
 
As the first step in the annexation process, the Resolution of Intention was brought before Council and
approved at the November 1, 2022, Council Meeting.
 
The second step in the legislative process for annexation of the Zip Thru Car Wash into Community
Facility District No. 2 included conducting the Public Hearing and the waiving the first reading of the
Ordinance at the January 3, 2023, Council Meeting.
 
STAFF REPORT: The final step in the legislative process for the annexation of Zip Thru Car Wash
involves the item coming back to Council as a Consent item to complete the adoption of the associated
Ordinance. This is the step before council tonight.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Ordinance No. 798:
 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of
Suisun City Communities Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services, Including Certain Annexation
Territory.
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Ordinance No. 798:  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Suisun City Levying Special
Tax Within City of Suisun City Communities Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services,
Including Certain Annexation Territory.  District Boundary Map. 

 

Item 8

21



PREPARED BY: Amanda Dum, Management Analyst II

REVIEWED BY: Nouae Vue, Director Public Works
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance 798 Zip Thru Annexation #14 CFD# 2.pdf

Item 8

22

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1741437/1.__Ordinance_798__Zip_Thru_Annexation__14_CFD__2.pdf


      

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 798 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SUISUN CITY LEVYING SPECIAL TAX WITHIN CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 (MUNICIPAL 

SERVICES), INCLUDING CERTAIN ANNEXATION TERRITORY 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

Community Facilities District No. 2 

(Municipal Services) 

Annexation No. 14 (Zip Thru Car Wash) 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City (the “City”) has conducted proceedings pursuant 

to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act, Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, 

commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government Code (the “Act”) to establish 

“City of Suisun City Community Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services)” (the “CFD”) 

for the purpose of financing certain municipal services (the “Services) as provided in the Act; 

and 

WHEREAS, the rate and method of apportionment of special tax for the CFD (the 

“Original Rate and Method”) is set forth in Exhibit A to City Council Resolution 2005-89, 

which was adopted on November 15, 2005 (the “Resolution of Formation”); and  

WHEREAS, the City has conducted proceedings to annex territory into the CFD and, 

in connection therewith, approved supplements to the Original Rate and Method (as 

supplemented, the “Rate and Method”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY as follows: 

SECTION ONE: By the passage of this Ordinance, pursuant to the Act, the Council 

hereby authorizes and levies the Special Tax within the CFD, including all territory annexed 

into the CFD prior to the date hereof, at the rate and in accordance with method set forth in the 

Rate and Method, which rate and method are by this reference incorporated herein. The Special 

Tax has previously been levied in the original territory of the CFD beginning in fiscal year 

2006-07 pursuant to Ordinance No. 684, passed and adopted by the City Council on December 

6, 2005, and the Special Tax is hereby levied commencing in fiscal year 2022-23 in the territory 

annexed to the CFD subsequent to formation of the CFD, and in each fiscal year thereafter to 

pay for the Services for the CFD and all costs of administering the CFD. 

The City Council hereby ratifies the levy of special taxes within the CFD pursuant to the Act, 

at the rate and in accordance with the Rate and Method, in fiscal years 2006-07 through 2022-

23. 

SECTION TWO: The City Manager or designee, or an employee or consultant of the 

City, is hereby authorized and directed each fiscal year to determine the specific Special Tax to 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

23



 

Ordinance No. __ 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

be levied for the next ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within the CFD, 

including all territory annexed to the CFD prior to the date hereof, in the manner and as provided 

in the Rate and Method. 

SECTION THREE: Exemptions from the levy of the Special Tax shall be as provided 

in the Resolution of Formation, the Rate and Method and the applicable provisions of the Act. 

In no event shall the Special Tax be levied on any parcel within the CFD in excess of the 

maximum Special Tax specified in the Rate and Method. 

SECTION FOUR: All of the collections of the Special Tax shall be used as provided 

in the Act and in the Resolution of Formation, including, but not limited to, the payment of 

costs of the Services, the payment of the costs of the City in administering the CFD, and the 

costs of collecting and administering the Special Tax. 

SECTION FIVE: The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary 

ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority and be subject to the same 

penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as provided for ad valorem 

taxes; provided, however, that the Council may provide for other appropriate methods of 

collection by resolution(s) of the Council. The City Manager of the City (or the City Manager’s 

designee) is hereby authorized and directed to provide all necessary information to the 

auditor/tax collector of the County of Solano in order to effect proper billing and collection of 

the Special Tax, so that the Special Tax shall be included on the secured property tax roll of the 

County of Solano for fiscal year 2022-23 and for each fiscal year thereafter, as set forth above, 

until no longer required to pay for the Services or until otherwise terminated by the City. 

SECTION SIX: If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid, 

or if the Special Tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within the CFD, including 

all territory annexed to the CFD prior to the date hereof, by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

the balance of this Ordinance and the application of the Special Tax to the remaining parcels 

within the CFD, including all territory annexed to the CFD prior to the date hereof, shall not be 

affected. 

SECTION SEVEN: The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause 

the same to be published immediately after its passage at least once in a newspaper of general 

circulation circulated in the City. 

SECTION EIGHT: This Council affirms the provisions of Ordinance No. 684 except 

to the extent any terms of such Ordinance are inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in which case the terms of this Ordinance shall govern.  

SECTION NINE: This Ordinance shall become effective (30) days following its 

passage and adoption and shall be published once within fifteen (15) days upon passage and 

adoption in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano. 

 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

24



Ordinance No. __ 

Adopted  

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun City 

held on January 3, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 20th day of December 2022. 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City held on January 17, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

ATTEST: 

Mayor Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

25



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

26



DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

CITY COUNCIL 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor 

Princess Washington, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Michael J. Hudson 

Jenalee Dawson 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 

MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 (2021), 

the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: 

Council/Board Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, Mayor Alma 

Hernandez. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:   875 2605 0953 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Hernandez called the meeting to order at 5:31pm with the following Council Members 

present: 

PRESENT:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

ABSENT:  None 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers should be identified at this time.) 

Council Member Hudson has a conflict with Item #1 and left the meeting at 5:34pm.  Will return 

for Item #2. 

Item 9

27

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


December 20, 2022 City Council  Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT  None 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 

Session for the purpose of: 

City Council 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Discussion of potential significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section

54956.9(c)(2) (1 potential case).

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Discussion of potential significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section

54956.9(d)(2) (1 potential case).

Council entered into Closed Session at 5:34 pm. 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:25 pm. 

____________________________ 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

Item 9

28



CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL MEETING   
Alma Hernandez, Mayor  
Princess Washington, Mayor Pro Tem  
Michael J Hudson, Member  
Jenalee Dawson, Member 

MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL, 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2022 

6:30 PM 

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California 

NOTICE  
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 (2021), the 

following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: Council/Board 

Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, Mayor Alma Hernandez. Teleconference 

locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLICWHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU. 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER OF 

SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com OR 707 

421-7302.

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID: 836 6642 3360 

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING BY EMAILING 

CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM) OR VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

(Next Ord. No. – 796) 

(Next City Council Res. No. 2022 – 155) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2022 - 07) 

(Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2022 – 04) 

ROLL CALL  

Item 9

29



Mayor Hernandez called the meeting to order at 6:40 pm with the following Council Members present: 

PRESENT:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

ABSENT:  None 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice Mayor Washington. 

Invocation was given by City Manager Greg Folsom. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be identified 

at this time.) 

REPORTS (Informational items only.) 

1 City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

• Employees Recognition Awards were held 12/16.  Named employees and years of

service; Employee of the Year-Julia Lozarro

• Fire Department now has two fully staffed engines

• Lighting of Menorah, Thursday, 12/22 at City Hall

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS  
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

2 Microtransit Presentation – (Solano Transportation Authority). 

Brandon Thomson, Transit Mobility Coordinator gave the presentation.  Darryl Halls and 

Lorene Garrett were present and available to answer questions.  He responded to questions 

previously asked by residents at prior Council meetings. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Donna LeBlanc technical issues. 

Lecrecia Evans thanked him for presentation; lives in Fairfield and son attends Crystal Middle School, 

with #5 Route no longer being provided it proposes a disservice. 

Mr. Thomson responded to concerns. 

3 Presentation of Proclamation to La Cabana in Recognition of Business of the Year – 

(Hernandez: ahernandez@suisun.com). 

Mayor Hernandez read proclamation and which was presented to Ramses Solis by Vice 

Mayor Washington. 

Ramses Solis thanked the Council for the recognition and commented he is proud to be part 

of this community. 

Council thanked them for being part of the community for 30 years 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per California 

Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the Mayor/Chair. Speaker 

Item 9

30

mailto:ahernandez@suisun.com


cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the City Clerk. By law, no 

prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period, although informational 

answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a future agenda.) 

Clerk read email from Anthony Ramos who is requesting south bound Grizzley Island Road be changed 
to provide two left turn lanes onto Highway 12. 

Jim Wise attended a meeting at Nelson Center and a party with live band going on and made it very 
difficult for meeting participants to hear.  Consideration needs to be given by staff when booking 
multiple rooms how one might affect the other. 

Michael Zeiss congratulated and welcomed the new council members; the future challenges they face 
and the staff they can rely on. 

Steve Olry 

Larry Brumfield expressed condolences to the Price family for the loss of former mayor Harry Price; 
Menorah on Thursday come out and support 7pm; thanked citizens who were out picking up trash.  

George Guynn congratulated La Cabana, ditto to Olry’s comments, improve time management in 
conducting business, new regime and already have physical absences. 

James Berg made 22-23 budget comments, graph shows largest portion is Other, what is other? Dredging 
comments. 

Michelle Chavez thanked Council for response to email. 

Donna LeBlanc thanked all residents in Suisun for all the work you have done individually or with 
groups picking up trash; largest gift is giving your time;  

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

4 Council/Board Members Updates 

Council Members thanked staff for their service to the city; congratulated Fire Department on 

two fully staffed engines; congratulated La Cabana; thanked community for their involvement 

in continuing to beautify the city. 

Mayor Hernandez congratulated La Cabana; opportunity to ring the bell for the Salvation 

Army and meet community members; a very successful Senior Luncheon; thanked Michelle 

Chavez and Donna LeBlanc for continually reaching out; Regional Homeless Committee 

meeting Thursday, 1/19/23 at 6pm at the County building; appointed alternate to LAFCO. 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

5 Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-155: A Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and 

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through January 19, 2023 

– (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

Item 9

31

avca:69e1d5a2-6477-4edc-bdf6-8471fd57b468@01:01:22
avca:69e1d5a2-6477-4edc-bdf6-8471fd57b468@01:01:22
avca:69e1d5a2-6477-4edc-bdf6-8471fd57b468@01:01:22
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com


6 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-156: Reaffirming the Necessity of the Development 

Impact Fees and Accepting the Annual Report on Development Impact Fees – (Deol: 

ldeol@suisun.com). 

7. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022- 157: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Professional Services Agreement on the City’s Behalf with Planwest Partners to complete a

Municipal Services Review – (Bermudez: jbermudez@suisun.com).

8 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-158: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Contract Amendment on the City’s Behalf with David Wade and Associates to Process the 

Development Application for the Highway 12 Logistics Center Project – (Bermudez: 

jbermudez@suisun.com). 

9 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-159: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Contract 

Amendment No. 2 on the City’s Behalf with David Wade and Associates to Process the 

Development Application for the Suisun Logistics Center Project – (Bermudez: 

jbermudez@suisun.com). 

10 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-160: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Second 

Amendment to a Professional Services Agreement on the City’s Behalf with First Carbon Solutions 

(FCS) to Prepare an Environmental Impact Report for the Suisun Logistics Center Project – 

(Bermudez: jbermudez@suisun.com). 

11 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-161: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Contract Services Agreement with Superior Building Services for Janitorial Services for City 

Facilities – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com). 

12 Receive and file SB-165 Annual Reports for Community Facilities District No. 1, Community 

Facilities District No. 2, and Community Facilities District No. 3, to comply with the Local Agency 

Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com) 

13 Brown Act Updates: – (City Attorney) 

a. Receive and file report on Brown Act updates.

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-162: A resolution of the City Council of the City

of Suisun City adopting a reasonable accommodation policy to apply to all Brown Act

meetings.

c. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-163: A resolution of the City Council of the City

of Suisun City to update the language on the City’s agendas to reflect the changes to the

Brown Act enacted by AB 2449, SB 1100, and SB 1489.

Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

14 Successor Agency Adoption of Resolution No. SA 2022-07: Receiving and Accepting a 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 2023/24 (ROPS) for the Period of July 1, 2023 through 

June 30, 2024 – (Deol: ldeol@suisun.com). 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

15 Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of the 

Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing Authority 

held on November 1, 2022 – (Skinner: askinner@suisun.com). 

Item 9

32

mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:jbermudez@suisun.com
mailto:jbermudez@suisun.com
mailto:jbermudez@suisun.com
mailto:jbermudez@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:askinner@suisun.com


Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

16 Council/Agency Approval of November 2022 Payroll Warrants in the Amount of $590,292.68 and 

Council/Agency Approval of the November 2022 Accounts Payable Warrants in the Amount of 

$1,056,411.00 – (Finance). 

Mayor Hernandez explained new process for Consent Calendar items. 

Mayor Hernandez pulled Item #7. 

Council Member Hudson pulled Items #8 and #9. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

George Guynn 

Item #13 

Explain Brown Act changes to the public, disruptive meetings need to be handled better. 

Item #16 

Comments on high amounts on expenditures. 

Motion by Council Member Washington to approve Consent Calendar Items 5, 6, 10, 11, 12, 13, 

14, 15, 16 and seconded by Council Member Dawson.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

Item #7 

Mayor Hernandez asked to have Municipal Services review explained.  Community Services Director 

Bermudez explained. 

Public Comments 

Michael Zeiss stated the Municipal Services Review should include analyze protection from flooding 

due to sea-level rise; analyze provisions of services to homeless; and consider reducing size of Sphere of 

Influence. 

Director Bermudez responded to comments. 

Motion by Council Member Dawson to approve Consent Calendar Item #7 and seconded by 

Council Member Hudson.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

Item #8 

Council Member Hudson had clarifying questions.  Director Bermudez responded 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Steve Olry voiced concern for security of Travis AFB. 

Item 9

33



Motion by Council Member Dawson to approve Consent Calendar Item #8 and seconded by 

Council Member Washington.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

Item #9  

Council Member Hudson asked clarifying questions.  Director Bermudez responded. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

George Guynn voice concerns of interference with Travis AFB. 

Motion Item by Council Member Washington to approve Consent Calendar Item #9 and seconded 

by Council Member Dawson.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Washington 

NOES:  Hudson 

ABSENT:  None 

Public Comment missed; given opportunity to ask her questions. 

Items #11  

Donna LeBlanc preschool cleaning needs to be done more than twice a week. 

Item #13 

Brown act questions 

Item #14  

Understood it was a presentation from Ms Deol; marina construction loan payments, why recurring 

payments are shown; 

Staff to follow up directly with Ms. LeBlanc. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

17 Consideration of the Following for the Historic Waterfront Business Improvement District: – 

(Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com) 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-164: Reauthorizing and Renewing the

Historic Waterfront Business Improvement District and the Assessment Levy for the

District; and

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-165: Approving the Proposed Calendar-

Based Fiscal Year 2022 Operating Budget for the Suisun City Historic Waterfront

Business Improvement District.

Deputy City Manager Lofthus presented staff report and power point; Board Members Laura Cole Rowe 
and John Harder in attendance to answer questions. 

Mayor Hernandez opened the Public Hearing. 

George Guynn commented we have gotten along without BID during COVID, businesses have gone out, 
city should not be involved, hope city doesn’t support this again. 

Item 9

34

mailto:klofthus@suisun.com


James Berg commented this is an extra tax; spoke with businesses who would rather see money used for 
policing. 

Ruth Forney asked if other businesses have been considered and expand this and not just downtown. 

There being no further comments Mayor Hernandez closed the Public Hearing. 

Laura Cole Rowe responded to comments and explained plans for 2023.  

Motion by Council Member Washington to approve and seconded by Council Member Dawson.  
Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 

18 Council Introduction and Waive Reading of Ordinance No. 796; An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City, California, Amending Ordinance 793, Adopting Policy 706 

Relating to the Police Department’s Use of Military Equipment, in Accordance with Assembly 

Bill 481 – (Roth: aroth@suisun.com). 

Chief Roth presented staff report and power point stating this is requesting to add a command-and-
control vehicle to the existing and previously approved policy by way of ordinance; policy includes the 
current items in SCPD inventory covered by AB481 

Mayor Hernandez opened the Public Hearing. 

George Guynn commented it was nice the state provides ½ mil dollars; feels city is wasting money. 

Steve Olry commented this military style vehicle creates a conflict of interest; council member’s father 
sells military equipment should they not vote on this item? 

Michelle Chavez commented she supports this policy. 

Donna LeBlanc asked clarifying questions that we are just adding this to policy; this is a grant and if we 
don’t use all the money do, we have to give money back; when will funding become available; will we 
use city money and then repay it with grant money. 

There being no further comments the Public Hearing was closed. 

Chief Roth replied to questions.  City Attorney Gerli commented it would not be a conflict of interest. 

Motion by Council Member Dawson to introduce and waive reading of Ordinance and seconded 
by Council Member Washington.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 

Motion by Council Member Dawson to continue meeting past 10 pm and seconded by Council 
Member Washington.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 

Item 9

35

mailto:aroth@suisun.com


19 Public Hearing and Other Proceedings Related to Annexation No.13 to Community Facilities 

District No. 2 (Municipal Services), for the Caterpillar Clubhouse Project (Continued from 

December 6, 2022): – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com) 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___: Submitting Annexation of Territory

and Levy of Special Taxes to Qualified Electors; and

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___: Declaring Results of Special Annexation

Election, Determining Validity of Prior Proceedings, and Directing Recording of

Amended Notice of Special Tax Lien; and

c. Council Introduction and Waive Reading of Ordinance No. ___: An Ordinance of the

City Council of the City of Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of Suisun City

Communities Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services), Including Certain

Annexation Territory.

Motion by Council Member Washington and seconded by Council Member Dawson to continue 
item to the January 3 meeting.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 

20 Public Hearing and Other Proceedings Related to Annexation No.14 to Community Facilities 

District No. 2 (Municipal Services), for the Zip Thru Car Wash Project (Continued from 

December 6, 2022): – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com) 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___: Submitting Annexation of Territory

and Levy of Special Taxes to Qualified Electors; and

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___: Declaring Results of Special Annexation

Election, Determining Validity of Prior Proceedings, and Directing Recording of

Amended Notice of Special Tax Lien; and

c. Council Introduction and Waive Reading of Ordinance No. ___: An Ordinance of the

City Council of the City of Suisun City Levying Special Tax Within City of Suisun City

Communities Facilities District No. 2 (Municipal Services), Including Certain

Annexation Territory.

Motion by Council Member Dawson and seconded by Council Member Washington to continue 

the item to January 3 meeting.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

21 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022 - 166 : Adopting Certain Findings and the Policy 

Directives to Implement the Sales and Use of Safe and Sane Fireworks for 2023 as Provided 

in Chapter 8.04 of the Suisun City Code – (Lopez bllopez@suisun.com). 

Fire Marshall Jose Colin presented the staff report. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Donna LeBlanc commented she is appreciative of all the fire dept does; supports the educational 

campaign; how many electronic signs do we have and are we moving them around the city; how much 

do they cost and can we get more. 

Item 9

36

mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:bllopez@suisun.com


Fire Marshall Colin and Fire Chief Lopez responded to comments. 

Motion by Council Member Dawson to approve resolution and seconded by Mayor Hernandez.  

Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

22 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-167: A Resolution of the City Council of the City 

of Suisun City Adopting Procedures Relating to the Filling of a Vacancy on the City Council 

EGerli - (City Attorney). 

City Attorney Gerli presented the staff report; She stated this discussion was to modify procedure if 
necessary and discuss how to run the meeting on the 1/10. 

Proposed process: 
Application opens tomorrow at start of business day; ends January 3. 
Questions to city clerk by January 3 
Interviews on January 10 at 5:30pm and applicants will be required to attend 
Appoint to be made at regular meeting on January 17 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

George Guynn commented Council should explain why their top 3 are chosen; what are we ranking them 
on. 

Nancy Stiltz commented that people would not have a choice in who fills the position. 

Denise commented it should be one of the candidates who ran for office or hold a special election. 

James Berg commented that 4 people would automatically be moving on; applications should be sealed 
until day of, mail in accepted, should be allowed to ZOOM if can’t be in person. 

Donna LeBlanc commented the resolution reads a maximum of 7 and should read just 7, should have 
opportunity to ZOOM, ranking system and what they are ranking them on; sealed but still needs to be 
looked at by clerk and then resealed. 

Eunice Malley submitted written statement that one of the November candidates should be appointed. 

Following a Council discussion, the following process was approved: 

Applications available beginning 12/22 through 1/10 and must be received by 5pm. 
Open to all registered residents. 
Selection process – consider all applications on 1/17, town hall style meeting, attend in person unless just 
cause, video must be on. 
1/17 Council to rank candidates to a maximum of 7 
Those 7 move on to 1/24 
Candidates from the 11/8/22 election will move on to 1/24 if they apply. 
Questions received by clerk by 1/10 5pm 
1/24 council will deliberate on the last 7 or continue to 31st if no consensus, call for special election. 
1/17 candidates will answer questions; including compilation of questions submitted by the public. 

Item 9

37

avca:69e1d5a2-6477-4edc-bdf6-8471fd57b468@00:00:00


 
Motion by Council Member Washington to approve with changes and seconded by Council 
Member Dawson.  Motion passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
REPORTS: (Informational items only) 

 

23 Non-Discussion Items 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 12:23am in memory of Fairfield Mayor 

Harry Price. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 
 

Item 9

38



PREPARED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING  DATE:   January 17, 2023 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Interview of City Council Applicants 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance. 

BACKGROUND:  After the November 8, 2022, election, a current council member was elected to 

the office of the mayor. As such, that council member vacated their seat when sworn in as the new 

mayor. The result is that there is a vacancy on the City Council, which must be filled. The vacated 

office will terminate at the end of 2024.   

Suisun Municipal Code Section 2.04.040 and Government Code Section 36512 govern the process 

by which vacancies in the elected offices of city council members are filled. Specifically, Section 

36512 provides that a city council shall, within 60 days of the date of vacancy (i.e., no later than 

February 3, 2023), fill such vacancy by appointment, or call a special election to fill the vacancy for 

the remainder of the vacated term. Section 36512 does not provide any specific guidance on the 

manner in which the City Council selects an individual to fill a vacancy. Council has provided 

direction for an application process to fill the vacancy. A summary of the application process 

determined by the City Council is provided in the Background section of this report. 

Council has chosen to accept applications and conduct interviews to fill the vacancy. The below-

described process incorporates modifications pursuant to Council’s direction: 

1. Applications submittal period began on December 22, 2022, at start of business, and closed

on January 10, 2023, at 5:00 p.m.

2. Applicants must be registered voters and residents of the City.

3. Applications must include the applicant’s full name, address, statement stating that applicant

is a registered voter of the City, and a statement of qualifications.

4. All applications are a public record pursuant to the California Public Records Act (and also

subject to the same exemptions).

5. The Council has reviewed and considered all properly submitted applications and will

interview such applicants at this noticed meeting.

6. After the interviews, the Council will deliberate and narrow the number of applicants to be

considered for appointment at its regular meeting on January 24, 2023, to a maximum of

seven.

7. Any applicant who was a candidate for a seat on the Council in the November 8, 2022

election will be included in the number of applicants to be considered for appointment at the

regular meeting of the Council on January 24, 2023.

Item 11

39



8. City residents who are registered voters of the City could submit suggested interview

questions. These questions were to be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office by January 10,

2023 at 5:00 p.m.

9. At its regular meeting on January 24, 2023 (or at a later meeting of the Council’s choosing),

the Council will meet for the purpose of appointing an applicant to the Council. The process

will be as follows:

a. Discussion and deliberation of applicants remaining following the interview process

by Mayor and Council.

b. The Mayor shall make the appointment subject to the ratification by the full Council.

c. Ratification of an appointment shall require three affirmative votes of the Council.

The Mayor may also vote and be counted.

10. The failure to strictly adhere to these guidelines will not affect the legality and effectiveness

of any appointment made.

11. These procedures and timelines will no longer be effective upon an individual being

appointed to fill the vacancy.

The appointed councilmember will hold office for the unexpired balance of the vacated seat’s term, 

as the vacancy occurred in the second half of the former incumbent’s term. 

A proposed process to conduct interview efficiently and fairly has been provided for consideration 

by the Council.  

STAFF REPORT:  At the Council meeting on December 6, 2022, the Council directed the City 

Attorney’s office to return at the December 20, 2022 meeting with the appropriate documentation to 

adopt an application and interview process. At today’s town hall meeting, the City Council will 

interview all the applicants and narrow the pool down to no more than 7 applicants. On January 24, 

2023, the City Council will deliberate on the 7 or fewer applicants, and choose one candidate to fill 

the seat. The item may be continued further, but the City Council must take action no later than 

February 3, 2023, which is the date 60 days following the date the council seat was vacated 

(December 6, 2022). If the City Council does not appoint to the vacant seat, it will call a special 

election. 

Proposed procedure to conduct interviews and narrow down the 

number of candidates to no more than 7: 

The proposed process seeks to balance efficiency and fairness. Because the City Council is 

interviewing 12 candidates, the time each candidate will have to speak, including answering council 

questions, is limited. The strict time limitations are intended to ensure candidates have equal time 

and are not haphazardly provided more or less time, and therefore a bigger or smaller platform, than 

other candidates. Asking all candidates the same questions, without follow-up or surprise questions, 

is also intended to avoid proving an advantage or disadvantage to any candidate. For the same reason, 

candidates may not speak during public comment on this item so as to avoid candidates unfairly 

adding time to their interviews and to avoid candidates supporting or undermining any other 

candidate.  Therefore, in light of the above, the following is the proposed procedure for today’s 

meeting: 

Item 11

40



• Any applicant who is not physically present for the interview shall be disqualified unless 

the City Council finds their absence excusable with just cause. Candidates who are 

excused must participate by Zoom, and have their camera on for the entirety of their 

interview. 

• The City Clerk will randomly draw names to set the order for interviews. 

• Applicants will have an opportunity to provide a one minute opening statement at the 

beginning of their interview and a one minute closing statement at the end of their 

interview. 

• Applicants will have one minute to answer each of four questions from Council.  The 

same questions will be asked of all applicants. 

• Public Comment will open after all applicants have been interviewed and shall be limited 

to 2 minutes per speaker. 

• Applicants will not be allowed to participate in Public Comment on this item.  

• Council will deliberate following all interviews and Public Comment.  

• Council stipulated in the rules for the process that any applicant for Council who was on 

the November 2022 ballot as a candidate for Council shall be automatically moved 

forward in the process to the finals. As long as applicant Katrina Garcia shows up for the 

interviews, she will automatically move forward to the final round as she was the only 

candidate for Council on the November 2022 ballot who has applied for appointment. 

• No more than seven applicants can move on to the final round, so no more than six other 

applicants can be moved forward. 

• Councilmembers will vote on each applicant whether to move forward to final 

consideration at the January 24th Council meeting. Candidates will move on to the next 

round only with Council majority.  

• If the first round of voting does not result in 7 or fewer total candidates, Council will do 

another round of voting. All candidates who did not obtain a majority vote on the first 

round of voting are eliminated and will not be considered on following rounds. Council 

will continue to vote until no more than 7 candidates are chosen to move forward. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council follow the proposed 

procedures for interviewing City Council applicants. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.  Applications for Council 

 

 

 
 

Item 11

41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

42



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

43



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

44



Name: 
Anthony Adams 

Address: 

Home Phone: 

Employer: 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

CITY COUNCIL VACANCY 2023 

APPLICATION 

Please type or print clearly. 

PERSONAL DATA 

City: 

Suisun City 

Cell Phone: 

EMPLOYMENT DATA 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 

City: Industry: 
Sacramento Government/Transportation 

Employer: 
Washington Metro Area Transit Authority 

City: Industry: 
Washington DC Government/Transportation 

EOUCA noN DATA 

College/Universities Attended (Name/Location) Major 

California Polytechnic University City & Region Plannin J 

California Polytechnic Universitv Enoineerina 
San Fransisco State Universitv Urban Studies 

Licenses or Special Certificates Held: 

CIVIC EXPERIENCE 

State: 

CA 

Dates: 

Zip: 

94585 

1/3/2023 - current 

Dates: 
7 /5/22 -12/31 /2022 

Year 
Degree Completed 

Masters 2011 

Masters 2011 

Bachelors 2008 

Prior or Current Civic Experience (Include Membership in Office Held Dates of 
Professional, charitable, or community orQanizations) Of anv) Service/Membership 

Suisun Planning Commission Chair 01/2021 - Current 

Suisun Citv Coucil NIA 01/2019 -12/ 2020 

Suisun Parks & Recreation Commission Chair 01/2018-01/2019 

01080.0001/M5752.l 

701 Civic C.enter Blvd., Suisun aty, California 94585 I ADMINISTRATION (707) 421-7300 I www.SUISUN.com 

Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

45



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

46



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

47



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

48



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

49



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

50



Item11 
Attachment 1 

Alder, Thomas

51



Item11 
Attachment 1 

Alder, Thomas

52



Item11 
Attachment 1 

Alder, Thomas

53



Item11 
Attachment 1 

Alder, Thomas

54



Item11 
Attachment 1 

Alder, Thomas

55



Item11 
Attachment 1 

Alder, Thomas

56



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

57



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

58



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

59



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

60



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

61



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

62



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

63



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

64



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Beasley-Stansberry, Tara

65



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

66



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Berg, James

67



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Berg, James

68



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Berg, James

69



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Berg, James

70



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Berg, James

71



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Berg, James

72



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

73



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

74



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

75



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

76



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

77



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

78



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

79



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Cole-Rowe, Laura

80



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

81



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

82



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

83



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

84



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

85



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

86



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

87



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

88



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

89



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

90



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

91



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

92



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

93



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

94



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

95



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

96



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

97



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Dardon, Lilia

98



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

99



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

100



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

101



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

102



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

103



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

104



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

105



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

106



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Guynn, George

107



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Guynn, George

108



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Guynn, George

109



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Guynn, George

110



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Guynn, George

111



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Guynn, George

112



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Guynn, George

113



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

114



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

115



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

116



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

117



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

118



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

119



Item 11 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

120



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

121



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

122



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

123



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

124



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

125



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

126



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

127



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

128



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

129



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

130



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

131



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

132



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

133



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

134



Item 11 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

135


	Agenda 5:30 pm Special Closed Session Meeting
	Agenda 6:30 pm Regular Meeting Agenda
	Item 4 - Remote Teleconference Procedures
	Item 5 - Purchase of mobile and portable radios from Motorola Solutions for the New Type 5 Wildland Apparatus
	Item 6 - Approving Application for Specified Grant Fund from the Budget Act of 2022 - Park Upgrades
	Item 7 - Ordinance797 Levying Special Tax CFD 2 Catepillar Clubhouse
	Item 8 - Ordinance 798  Levying Special Tax CFD 2 Zip Thru Car Wash
	Item 9 - Minutes December 20, 2022
	Item 11 - Interview of City Council Applicants



